
Traffic Safety Committee 09-15-16  1  
 

TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2016 

SELECTBOARD MEETING ROOM – 4:00PM 
MINUTES 

 
 
Members present:  Town Manager Peter Elwell, Fire Chief Mike Bucossi, Police Captain Mark Carignan, 
Planning Director Rod Francis, Public Works Director Steve Barrett, School Representative Betsy Gentile, 
and Chamber of Commerce Representative Leo Schiff. 
 
Selectboard Representative:  David Gartenstein. 
 
Other staff members present:  Highway/Utilities Superintendent Hannah O’Connell. 
 
Others present:  Terry A. Carter, Kathleen White, Shyla Foss, Alice Charkes, Jan Kovarik, Betty Henry, 
John Allen, and others who did not sign the attendance sheet. 
 
Town Manager Elwell called the meeting to order at 4:05pm.   
 
Approve Minutes – July 21, 2016 

Elwell asked if there were any corrections to the July 21 minutes.  There was no discussion. 

MOTION BY MIKE BUCOSSI, AND SECONDED BY STEVE BARRETT, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES 
FROM JULY 21.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Public Participation 
None. 

Monthly Report on Pedestrian and Bicycle Incidents – Police Captain Carignan reported that since August 
1, there were 70 motor vehicle collisions without injuries (including 1 with a pedestrian), 5 collisions with 
injuries (including 1 with a pedestrian), and no bicycle incidents.  He said that one pedestrian incident 
took place in Harmony Parking where some people had a dispute and one person fell down in front of a 
car and was injured.  He said that the other pedestrian incident took place in McDonald’s parking lot 
where a report was made as a hit and run.  The alleged victim claimed he was struck in the shoulder by a 
car and fell down; however, several witnesses and the driver reported that the person was 3-4 feet from 
the car and there was no collision.  There was no discussion by the Committee. 

Monthly Report on Traffic Data Collection.  Highway/Utility Superintendent O’Connell reported that the 
electronic signs had been repaired and were now operational.  She said that one sign was posted on 
Western Avenue by the West Brattleboro Fire Station and collected data on eastbound traffic where the 
posted speed limit was a 25/30 mph split, the average speed was 26 mph, the 85th percentile was 31 
mph, and the average daily line was up to 23,000.  She said that the second sign was posted on Cedar 
Street by the Brattleboro Outing Club and collected data on northbound traffic heading toward Route 30 
and the posted speed was 25mph, the average speed was 29 mph, the 85th percentile was 33.4 mph, 
and the average vehicles per day was 1,100.  There was a very brief discussion. 

Street and Sidewalk Safety Policy Safety Action Requests 
 
(a)  Request to install flashing lights at crosswalk near Co-op by South Main Street.   O’Connell said 
that a request had been received to install a flashing pedestrian light at the crosswalk across Canal Street 
at the intersection with South Main Street.  She said that the crosswalk did meet the MUTCD standards 
for the installation of such a device; however she questioned whether it was a safe location to have a 
crosswalk and discussed several of her concerns.  Elwell noted that it was a very busy intersection with 
multiple safety concerns, that pedestrians had a safer option to cross the street at the traffic light at Lower 
Main Street, and that removing the crosswalk may be a safer option.  Jan Kovarik suggested that if a light 
was not installed at the intersection that signs be installed to alert drivers of the existence of the 
crosswalk.  He also reported that the street lights on the Co-Op building were not working properly.  
O’Connell agreed to review the possibility for adding signage at the intersection and would check into the 



Traffic Safety Committee 09-15-16  2  
 

malfunctioning street light.  There was some discussion about other pedestrian crossing options and the 
safety of pedestrians crossing at that location.  It was agreed that the matter would be included in a larger 
discussion later on the agenda. 
 
(b) Request to improve the intersection of Williams Street and Western Avenue.  Barrett said that a 
Safety Action Request form had been submitted requesting a review of the intersection at Williams Street 
and Western Avenue by the Vermont Country Deli.  He said that the intersection had been a concern for 
a long time and suggested that the Committee review the previous data, the area as now reconfigured, 
that further research be done with current data, and the matter be brought back before the Committee 
with updated information.  He noted that improvements to the intersection were previously priced from 
$170,000 to $300,000, that engineers would need to be employed, and that any changes would require 
State involvement.  An unidentified speaker said that the intersection was extremely unsafe for 
pedestrians crossing in front of the Deli and for bicyclists on Western Avenue, and suggested removing 
some parking spaces on Western Avenue, replacing the vertical parking spaces with horizontal parking, 
and using a police officer to monitor traffic and parking.  Gartenstein noted that adding and improving 
sidewalks from the Melrose Bridge to the I-91 area had been brought to the State’s attention and that the 
matter should be reviewed more broadly.  Francis said that he had data from a previous AARP-funded 
survey that he could make available for a later discussion.  There was much discussion by the Committee 
and it was agreed that Public Works would review the intersection, that current and past data would be 
made available, and the Committee would hold another discussion at its meeting in November. 
 
(c) Report regarding Safety Action Requests that have been addressed by staff.  O’Connell said that 
staff removed foliage obstructing stop signs at the intersection of Maple Street and Belmont Avenue and 
the stop sign on Guilford Street by the Citizens’ Bridge.  There was no discussion. 
 
Staff Proposal to Discontinue Flashing Yellow Light on Western Avenue Near South Street.  Elwell said 
that during the utility relocation phase of construction at the West Brattleboro Fire Station, it was 
discovered that the electrical feed for the overhead flashing yellow light located near the intersection of 
South Street and Western Avenue would have to be relocated.  In the discussion about relocating the 
electrical feed and the cost to do so, the need and effectiveness of the light were questioned.  He said 
that such flashing yellow lights were now considered outdated, were not in compliance with current 
MUTCD standards, and that better traffic safety tools were available.  Rather than investing money in 
relocating the light or freshening wires to accommodate the light’s relocation, staff suggested removing it.  
He said there may be some resistance from the residents who consider the light a landmark but 
questioned whether the light actually served a public service.  There was a brief discussion about 
“retiring” the light.  There was general consensus of the Committee to ask the Selectboard to consider 
approval of retiring the light. 
 
Selectboard Request for Traffic Safety Committee’s Recommendation(s) re: Future Expenditures for 
Pedestrian Safety.  Elwell said that a Selectboard member made a request to spend $30,000 to install 
four additional pedestrian crossing lights (or Rapid Rectangular Flashing Beacons (RRFBs) at crosswalks 
in Town, and the Selectboard agreed to ask the Traffic Safety Committee for its recommendation.  He 
thanked O’Connell and Barrett for their research and report included in a memo dated September 9, 
2016.  O’Connell reviewed the history of the Town’s response to recent pedestrian safety crises, including 
education, outreach, traffic enforcement, planning, infrastructure improvements, purchase and use of 
mobile radar devices, and preparation of the Street and Sidewalk Safety Policy.  She noted that every 
crosswalk was inventoried as reported in the September 9, 2016 memo and the crosswalks that staff 
considered of significance importance were highlighted.  She reviewed the installation of pedestrian 
activated pushbutton signals and other available tools.   
 
There was a very lengthy discussion by the Committee and participants about crosswalks, traffic calming 
efforts and tools, specific areas of concern, speed enforcement, adding crosswalks, pedestrian education, 
and how best to expend allotted funds.  Barrett requested flexibility in spending funds to maximize the 
best use with a variety tools.  Terry Carter requested that the Committee focus on the Vermont Avenue/ 
Putney Road area.  John Allen spoke of traffic speed on Fairfiew, Maple and Guilford Streets.  
Gartenstein suggested addressing traffic calming as a whole, using a variety of tools to maximum safety 
efforts, and that the Committee actively create a 3 to 5 year plan and make specific recommendations to 
the Selectboard on how best to spend allocated funds to improve traffic safety.  Bucossi suggested that 



Traffic Safety Committee 09-15-16  3  
 

funding be set aside to support the provisions already established in the Street and Sidewalk Safety 
Policy.  Betty Henry spoke of concerns about speeding traffic and police enforcement.  After much 
discussion, Elwell summarized that the Committee apparently agreed to make traffic safety improvements 
with allotted funds in an informed manner.  He said that staff would have further conversations as part of 
the budget process to propose funding in the capital budget for a traffic safety section.  He said he would 
report to the Committee in the upcoming months with suggestions to identify specific ways to use allotted 
funds in 2018. 
 
Other Business (Including Future Review of Traffic Safety on Guilford Street).  Betty Henry spoke about 
speeding concerns on Guilford Street and the lack of police enforcement.  She advocated moving the 
stop sign from the drive into the Farmer’s Market at the Citizens’ Bridge to the entrance at Living 
Memorial Park.  She also requested installing signs on Guilford Street, such as “speed strictly enforced” 
or “children at play.”  Elwell said that he received a letter from Mike Henry with Guilford Street concerns 
and that staff would research the matter and suggested it be added to the next agenda.  Mrs. Henry said 
she would not be available for the October meeting and agreed to contact Elwell to discuss scheduling 
the matter for a future agenda. 
 
There was no further business. 
 
ELWELL ADJOURNED THE MEETING AT 5:40PM. 


